
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Beck

AGENDA February 04, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Beck

Minutes Recessed Meeting - January 14, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - January 14, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - January 21, 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report December 2014

Report Trustee Monthly Report December 2014

Res. No. 215-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions and oaths of Deputy
Sheriffs.

Res. No. 215-2 A Resolution to confirm the reappointment by the County Mayor of the Chairman of the Hamilton
County Employee Appeals Board for a term ending February 6, 2017.

Res. No. 215-3 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Hamilton
County Board of Electrical Examiners, term ending February 7, 2019.

Res. No. 215-4 A Resolution confirming the appointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Hamilton
County Public Records Commission.

Res. No. 215-5 A Resolution approving the purchase of a two (2) year extended warranty for the Submersible
Video Ray amounting to $22,939.00 from VideoRay, LLC for the Sheriff’s Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 215-6 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract amendment with the State of
Tennessee Department of Human Services, to increase the Juvenile Court IV-D budget for fiscal
year 2014-2015 to cover the additional cost of leave pay-outs, and to amend the general fund
expense budget by $88,543 and the revenue budget by $58,438 from previously unbudgeted
funds.

Res. No. 215-7 A Resolution to amend the Schools Federal Projects Fund Budget by adding $5,492,612 to the
FY 2014-2015 Revenue and Expenditure Budget; to amend the Self-Funded Projects Fund
Budget by adding $453,859 to the FY 2014-2015 Revenue and Expenditure Budget; to amend
the General Purpose Fund Budget by reducing the FY 2014-2015 Revenue and Expenditure
Budgets by $2,480,235.

Res. No. 215-8 Resolution Number Not Used

Res. No. 215-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of Giant Steps Music Corporation for band instruments for East
Ridge High School amounting to $19,947.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 215-10 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to accept the renewal proposal for Hamilton
County’s Umbrella Liability Insurance coverage through BB&T/Huffaker & Trimble with
OneBeacon Insurance Company for a period of one year for a premium of $155,863.

Res. No. 215-11 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to submit an application to the Tennessee
Department of Economic and Community Development for a 2015 Community Development
Block Grant in an amount not to exceed $525,000 to provide water system improvements.

Res. No. 215-12 A Resolution accepting the bid of Ford of Murfreesboro for one (1) 4x4 utility vehicle amounting
to $27,245.00 for Emergency Medical Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 215-13 A Resolution accepting the bid of Z-Band, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning February 5,
2015, through June 4, 2015, for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.



Res. No. 215-14 A Resolution accepting the qualifications of AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc., GEO-Jobe
GIS Consulting, GRW, Inc., G-Squared, LLC, KCI Technologies, Inc., Kucera International, Inc.,
Littlejohn Engineering Associates, Inc., The Sidwell Company, Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.,
TetraTech, Inc., True North Geographic Technologies, LLC, Wiser Company, LLC and Woolpert,
Inc. for geographic information system data acquisition and consulting services beginning
February 4, 2015 through December 31, 2018, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 215-15 A Resolution accepting the bid of ProSys for Dell servers and Dell power vault system
components amounting to $118,106.56 for the Information Technology Services Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 215-16 A Resolution accepting the bid of Dell Marketing, LP for contract unit pricing, beginning February
4, 2015, through February 3, 2016 for Microsoft Office Standard 2013 and Microsoft Office Pro
Plus 2013 licenses for the Information Technology Services Department and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 14, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 14th day of January, 2015, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.    Total present – 9.  Total absent 

-0. 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 

 

Commissioner Mackey introduced, Dr. Joey Harris, Pastor of Harmony 

Baptist Church for the invocation.  Commissioner Mackey led in the pledge to the 

flag. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 

 2

 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business 

for the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

LATE ITEM: RESOLUTION NO. 115-40 

 

Commissioner Graham read for the record a proposed resolution. It was 

assigned Resolution No. 115-40. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 

Mackey, to adopt Resolution No. 115-40.  

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, indicated 

this resolution recommended by the full committee would amend the capital 

outlay budget in the amount of and not to exceed $85,000 for office furnishings in 

the Criminal Courts and General Sessions Courts. He outlined bid specifications 

that would need to be met in accordance with the resolution and noted that bids 

are to be sent to the purchasing department and approved by the Finance 

Committee.  

 

Attorney Taylor recommended in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order 

and past actions of this body that the Commission should first dispose of 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 

 3

Resolution No. 1114-9A, which was previously tabled. He cautioned that in May 

of 2009 the County settled a sizeable claim resulting from a Hamilton County bid 

relating to office furniture requested by the Clerk and Master’s Office. 

 

In response to Attorney Taylor’s concerns, Chairman Fields ruled that the 

previous motion had died and therefore this resolution was in order.  He asked if 

any member of the Commission would like to challenge his ruling. No one 

challenged the Chairman’s ruling. 

 

At this time lengthy discussion regarding Resolution No. 115-40 took 

place. 

 

At the request of Commissioner Haynes, a rough draft of Resolution No. 

115-40 was distributed to the Commission and the County Clerk’s office.  

 

After receiving copies of the draft several members of the Commission, 

Director of Purchasing Gail Roppo, and Attorney Taylor continued to have 

discussions regarding the late addition of Resolution No. 115-40. 

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes’ remarks regarding a recent news 

article pertaining to Commissioners conversing by phone during meetings, 

Commissioner Beck strongly criticized the state’s Open Meetings Act (Sunshine 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 

 4

Law). He added that Commissioners should be able to communicate about 

business outside of open meetings. 

  

The Chairman called for a brief recess to allow the Commission time to 

read the draft of Resolution No. 115-40. 

 

After calling the meeting back to order Chairman Fields asked for a roll 

call on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 115-40. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 

Mackey, to adopt Resolution No. 115-40. The foregoing Resolution was adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Nay”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Nay”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye.” Total 

present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes - 7.  Total Nay votes – 2.   

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 

 5

 

Clerk Knowles asked that Resolution No. 115-40 be furnished to the 

Clerk’s office in the proper format. Chairman Fields directed the County 

Attorney’s office to prepare the resolution. 

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

 

      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 
____     
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 14, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 14th day of January, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 Resolution No. 115-22 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution No. 115-23 and 115-24 were heard by a Committee of the Whole 
 Resolution No. 115-25A, 115-25B, and 115-26 through 115-29 were assigned to 

the Zoning Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 
 Resolution No. 115-30 through 115-39 were assigned to the Finance Committee, 

chaired by Commissioner Graham.  
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 115-23 

 

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding Resolution No. 115-23, which would reappoint 

Jennifer Stanley to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of 

Trustees for a term ending October 31, 2017.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham and Commission Boyds inquiries, Mayor 

Coppinger confirmed that Ms. Stanley was in favor of the recently approved bonuses at 

Erlanger Health System. He reminded the Commission that Erlanger has had 

tremendous improvements under the current administration. They are currently in the 

bond market and it is important that there be no indications of disharmony with the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 3

community during this process. In closing, he added that Ms. Stanley’s resume in itself 

illustrates that she is a extremely intelligent woman and he reccommended approval. 

 

Commissioner Boyd agreed that the timing of the bonuses wasn’t the best. He 

thanked the Mayor for his reappointment of Jennifer Stanley.  

 

Commissioner Haynes and fellow Commissioners asked for a copy of Ms. 

Stanley resume’. Mayor Coppinger indicated this was an oversight, and his office would 

provide a copy of Ms. Stanley’s resume to the Commission and the County Clerk’s 

office. 

 

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution No. 115-24 would now be heard by the 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 115-24 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding Resolution No. 115-24, which would reappoint 

James C. Hudson, III, as chairman of the Carter Street Corporation for a term ending 

January 5, 2019. He noted that the chairman is jointly appointed by the County Mayor 

and the Mayor of the City of Chattanooga and both agreed to reappoint Mr. Hudson. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 4

Commissioner Haynes and fellow Commissioners asked for a copy of Mr. 

Hudson’s resume. Mayor Coppinger indicated that his office would provide a copy of Mr. 

Hudson’s resume to the Commission and the County Clerk’s office. 

 

In response to Commissioner’s Boyd’s question, Mayor Coppinger stated that 

Carter Street Corporation’s mission statement is to encourage economic development 

in the Southside.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes commented that serving on more than one panel 

prohibited his attendance at other Committee meetings conducted at the same time and 

that his absence shouldn’t be held against him. Chairman Fields emphasized that 

Committee times and locations are set at the discretion of the various Committee 

Chairperson. 

 

Commissioner Mackey and Commissioner Graham both added that the fact 

Commissioner Haynes did not attend the Finance Committee meeting to hear 

discussions relating to Resolution No. 115-40 was not intended to be offensive. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 5

  

Chairman of the Finance Committee, Commissioner Graham, announced that 

the Finance Committee would meet in the Commission Room immediately following the 

agenda session.  

 

 Chairman of the Zoning Committee, Commissioner Haynes, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would meet in the Commission Room after the Finance Committee 

had concluded their business. 

 

Commissioner Beck clarified for the record his statement at the Recessed 

meeting. He had used the word “essence” of time but had meant in the “interest” of 

time.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke about the recent announcement of Chattanooga’s 

Innovation District. The innovation district is centered at MLK Blvd and Georgia Avenue 

and stretches a quarter mile in all directions. Mayor Coppinger added that he looks 

forward to new companies moving to Chattanooga and watching them prosper over the 

next few years. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 14, 2015 
 
 

 6

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, January 21st at 9:30 AM.  

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 21, 2015 

  

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 21st day of January, 2015, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 2

 Pastor Bruce Sloan gave the invocation and Commissioner Mackey led in the 

pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of December 31, 2014, the Agenda 

Preparation Session of December 31, 2014, and the Regular Meeting of January 7, 

2015, be approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The 

foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd , 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of January 

12, 2015.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 3

RESOLUTION NO. 115-22  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND OATH OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFF. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-22.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 115-23 be heard at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-23  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 

COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A TERM ENDING 

OCTOBER 31, 2017. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding Resolution No. 115-23  re-appointing 

Jennifer Stanley to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 4

Trustees. He spoke highly of Ms. Stanley’s resume and requested that the Resolution 

be postponed pending the release of the State Attorney General’s investigation 

regarding whether the Erlanger board violated the Open Meetings Act before it voted to 

pay nearly $2 million in executive bonuses in December 2014.  

 

Chairman Fields advised that a Motion must first be made to put the resolution 

on the floor for discussion and then a motion to postpone would be in order. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-23.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

postpone Resolution No. 115-23 until the State Attorney General’s investigation is 

released.  

At this time lengthy discussion regarding Resolution No. 115-23 took place. 

 

Several Commissioners indicated that state Senator Todd Gardenhire had asked 

them to postpone the confirmation of reappointment until the State Attorney General’s 

investigation is released. Commissioner Haynes also added that Marc Gravitt, 

representative for State House District 30, indicated that he had no opinion on the 

matter and it was the Mayor’s appointment. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 5

Mayor Coppinger stated that he had not been asked to delay the appointment. 

 

It was also clarified that the Attorney General had been asked for an Opinion 

regarding the Sunshine Law in the Erlanger action, and that the word investigation was 

not the proper terminology.  

 

 Chairman Fields called for a roll call vote to postpone Resolution No. 115-23.   

 

The foregoing Motion to postpone failed on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Nay”; Commissioner Beck, “Nay”; Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Nay”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Nay”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Smedley, “Nay”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Nay”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 2.  

Total “Nay” votes – 7.   

 

At this time Chairman Fields asked if anyone had any further debate. Being 

none, the Chairman called for a roll call vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 115-

23. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 6

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, 

“Abstain”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 1. Total Abstentions - 1   

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 115-24 be heard at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-24  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CARTER STREET 

CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR A TERM ENDING JANUARY 5, 2019. 

 

Resolution No. 115-24 confirmed the reappointed of James C. Hudson, III to the 

Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-24.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 7

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 115-25A, 115-25B, and 115-26 

through 115-29 be heard at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-25A  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR 

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AT 8246 ROY LANE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-25B  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR 

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AT 8246 ROY LANE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-26  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM M-1 INDUSTRIAL 

DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE 

MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 

6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-27  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 

OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 8

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-28  A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE ABANDONMENT OF 

AN UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY OFF OF THE 6200 BLOCK OF OOLTEWAH-

GEORGETOWN ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-29  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

ZONING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE V GENERAL PROVISIONS SECTION 105(3)(B) 

TO CLARIFY THE “EFFECTIVE DATE” MENTIONED IN THE TEXT. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding the 

Resolutions. He stated that there was no opposition on Resolution No. 115-25A, 115-

25B, and 115-26 through 115-29.  

 

Commissioner Haynes asked that Resolution No. 1115-25B be heard separately. 

He reported that the Zoning Committee recommended approval for Resolution No. 115-

25B. He pointed out that Resolution 115-25B included ten additional regulations that the 

Planned Unit Development at 8246 Roy Lane must adhere to. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was anyone present in opposition.  There was no 

one. 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 9

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-25B. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.  

 

RESOLUTIONS NO. 115-26 THROUGH 115-28 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, requested that 

Resolutions No. 115-26 through 115-28 be considered. Commissioner Haynes asked if 

there was any opposition present in the audience. There was not.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 115-26 through 115-28. The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 10

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-29 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution No. 115-29 which amended the Hamilton County zoning regulations, Article 

V general provisions section 105(3)(b) to clarify the “effective date” mentioned in the 

text.  

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-29.  

 

Greg Haynes, Regional Planning Agency, added that the amendment was 

general housekeeping that updated the effective date for future reformatting and 

amendments. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any opposition present in the audience. 

Being none he asked for a roll call vote on Resolution No. 115-29. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 11

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-30  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A CONTINUATION 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION TO PROVIDE TWO (2) SCHOOL RESOURCE 

OFFICERS FOR TWO YEARS, BETWEEN JULY 1, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2016 AND 

TO AMEND THE SHERIFF’S BUDGET. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-31  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO APPLY FOR A CLEAN ENERGY GRANT SPONSORED BY THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION THAT WILL PAY HALF 

THE COST OF A LIGHTING SYSTEM UPGRADE IN THE COURTS BUILDING THAT 

IS ESTIMATED TO COST $401,056. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 12

RESOLUTION NO. 115-32 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2018 CONTRACT PERIOD, IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $39,300 ($13,100 PER YEAR) TO PROVIDE CASE 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH PREVENTION OF CHILDHOOD LEAD POISONING PROGRAM 

GUIDELINES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-33 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO RENEW THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF TENNESSEE ON BEHALF OF 

THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FOR HAMILTON COUNTY 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND HAMILTON COUNTY 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES THROUGHOUT CALENDAR YEAR 2015 IN SUPPORT AND 

DEVELOPMENT OF SOFTWARE FOR THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF 

INVESTIGATION NOT TO EXCEED $155,000. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 13

RESOLUTION NO. 115-34  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF DECEMBER 1, 2014, 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-35  A RESOLUTION (1) ESTABLISHING THE MINIMUM BID 

AMOUNT FOR CERTAIN PARCELS OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY HAMILTON 

COUNTY THROUGH PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALES, (2) AUTHORIZING THE 

OFFER OF SAID PARCELS FOR SALE AT THAT MINIMUM BID AMOUNT, AND (3) 

AUTHORIZING CERTAIN SAID PARCELS TO BE OFFERED FOR SALE FOR AN 

AMOUNT LESS THAN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAXES, PENALTY, COST AND 

INTEREST ACCUMULATED AGAINST THE PROPERTY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-36  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONVEY TO THE CITY OF 

CHATTANOOGA HAMILTON COUNTY'S INTEREST IN PROPERTY JOINTLY 

OWNED BY THE CITY AND COUNTY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO 115-36A  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONVEY TO THE CITY OF 

CHATTANOOGA HAMILTON COUNTY'S INTEREST IN PROPERTY JOINTLY 

OWNED BY THE CITY AND COUNTY. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 14

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-37  A RESOLUTION FOR WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY 

SERVICES TO SELL A 1971 CUSTOM SEAGRAVE PUMPER WHICH IS CO-TITLED 

WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-38  A RESOLUTION FOR WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY 

SERVICES TO SELL A 1980 FMC/FORD PUMPER WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH 

HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-39  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY OF THE 

TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR A 2015 HOMELAND 

SECURITY GRANT WITH A PERIOD OF 09/01/2014 THROUGH 04/30/2016 AND 

AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT BY 

ADDING $ 170,836.20 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 115-30 

through 115-39 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 15

 

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s inquiry, Chairman Fields confirmed that 

when petroleum prices decline tax revenues received stay the same.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-30 through 115-35, 115-36B, and 115-37 through 115-38. 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Clerk Knowles asked that Resolution No. 115-40 be furnished to the Clerk’s 

office in the proper format. Chairman Fields reported that the resolution was being 

prepared by the County Attorney’s office. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 16

Commissioner Haynes publicly recognized that Ed Gravitt was present in 

audience and thanked him for his community involvement. 

 

Commissioner Mackey recognized that Donna Horne, School Board 

representative for District 7, was present in the audience and wished her a happy 

birthday.  Members of the Commission sang Happy Birthday to Ms. Horne. 

 

Commissioner Graham recognized that former State Representative Richard 

Floyd was present in the audience and thanked him for his service.  

  

Commissioner Boyd recognized that his wife was present in the audience and 

thanked her for attending. Mr. Boyd, Chairman of the Education Committee, announced 

the second joint meeting between the Education Committee and the Hamilton County 

Board of Education’s Facilities Committee. The meeting would be held at Chattanooga 

School for the Liberal Arts (CSLA) on Wednesday, February 18th at 8:00 a.m.  He 

questioned Attorney Taylor as to whether his announcement constituted adequate legal 

notice.  Attorney Taylor indicated it did and asked that the media give special attention 

to the announcement. 

 

Commissioner Smedley recognized that Scott McColpin, Vice President of the 

Pachyderm Club of Hamilton County, was present in the audience. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 17

 Commissioner Beck voiced that he was thankful for the low gas prices. 

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that the Chattanooga Airport boardings climbed 14 

percent last year over 2013. He also announced Erlanger Hospital’s recent success and 

thanked the Commission for their confirmation of the reappointment of Jennifer Stanley 

to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding Resolution No. 115-40, which was adopted 

during the Recessed Meeting on January 14, 2015. He asked the Commission to 

reconsider their vote for various reasons. He spoke in detail about the suggested 

amendments. In closing, he indicated Resolution No. 115-40 was in violation of state 

and county purchasing laws. 

 

 At this time there was lengthy conversation as to the Commission’s desire to 

reconsider Resolution No. 115-40.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

reconsider Resolution No. 115-40.  

 

 After lengthy discussion, Chairman Fields asked the clerk to call the roll on the 

Motion to reconsider. 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 18

The foregoing Motion to reconsider Resolution No. 115-40 was adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Nay”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 3. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

amend Resolution 115-40 in accordance with recommendations stated by Mayor 

Coppinger. 

 

 At this time the Chairman called for a brief recess to allow the County Attorney to 

draft the amendment in Resolution form for each Commission to read. 

----------------------- 

 

Chairman Fields called the meeting back to order. All Commissioners were 

present. 

  

Attorney Taylor outlined the seven changes that were made to the original 

resolution, which he had assigned the new number 115-40A.  He stated he had 

removed any reference to the $85,000 figure, the 500-pound weigh capacity, the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 19

reference to color of chair, the reference requiring the Finance Committee to approve 

the specifications, the reference that products must be equivalent to Encore and Lesro, 

and the geographical limits for suppliers. In addition, the amended Resolution No. 115-

40A added that both the Hamilton County Sessions and Criminal Courts be included in 

the purchase of chairs and that there are sufficient funds available to pay for this 

purchase in the County’s bond funds. 

 

Commissioner Mackey withdrew his second to amend Resolution 115-40. He 

stated he could not support the use of bond funds to purchase chairs.  

 

Chairman Fields asked for a second to Commissioner Beck’s motion to amend 

Resolution No. 115-40.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks indicated he would second the Motion to amend the 

resolution.  Debate continued. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

call for the question on the Motion to amend Resolution No. 115-40.   

 

Chairman Fields ruled that a Motion to call for the question was not debatable.  

He asked the Clerk to call the roll. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 20

The foregoing Motion calling for the question was adopted on a roll call vote with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay,”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay,”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye.”  Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 6.  

Total “Nay” votes – 3. 

 

Chairman Fields asked the Clerk to call the roll on the Motion to amend 

Resolution No. 115-40. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

amend Resolution No. 115-40. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Nay”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Nay”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 5.  Total “Nay” votes – 4. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 115-40A be heard at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 21

RESOLUTION NO. 115-40A A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A 

REQUEST FOR BIDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF CHAIRS FOR THE GENERAL 

SESSIONS AND CRIMINAL COURTS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AND 

APPROPRIATING FUNDS NECESSARY FOR SAID PURCHASE. 

 

 Clerk Knowles questioned whether a Motion was in order to adopt the resolution 

as amended.  Chairman Fields ruled the previous Motion to adopt was still on the floor.  

Attorney Taylor agreed. 

 

The foregoing Resolution No. 115-40A was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Nay”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 5.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 4. 

 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee asked that the 

record reflect that members of that committee voted unanimously against the amended 

resolution. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2015 

 

 22

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Scott Pell residing at 9283 Crystal Brook Drive Apison, TN 37302 addressed the 

Commission and asked that Hamilton County consider modify the on-premise beer 

sales distance requirement to match the City of Chattanooga’s distance requirement of 

500 feet. He stated that the current distance requirement for on-premise beer sales in 

the county is 1500 feet from a church, school or other place of public gathering. This 

modification would allow him to be more competitive within the market.  

 

Greg Haynes with the Regional Planning Agency indicated if this matter was 

assigned to a committee he would work with the committee on any revisions. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until January 28, 2015 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

























No. 215-1 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY 
PUBLIC POSITIONS AND OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 
   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS have taken the oath of office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2. That the persons named on the listing labeled OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 

 3. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 215-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEE APPEALS BOARD 
FOR A TERM ENDING FEBRUARY 6, 2017. 

 
WHEREAS,  pursuant to Hamilton County Resolution No. 180-6, the chairman of the 

Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board is appointed by the County Mayor 
and confirmed by the Board of Commissioners; and,  

 
WHEREAS,   the County Mayor has reappointed Steve Parks to serve as chairman for a term 

beginning February 6, 2015, and ending February 6, 2017; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Steve Parks to serve as chairman of the Hamilton County Employee 
Appeals Board is hereby confirmed for the term as stated above.Ah 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 215-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTRICAL 
EXAMINERS, TERM ENDING FEBRUARY 7, 2019. 
 
WHEREAS,                pursuant to County Council Resolution of February 16, 1972, as 

amended by Resolution of October 4, 1972, members of the Hamilton 
County Board of Electrical Examiners are appointed by the County 
Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS,                the County Mayor has reappointed Brian Keith Owensby (Journeyman 

Electrician) for a term of four years, beginning February 7, 2015 and 
ending February 7, 2019.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Brian Keith Owensby to the County Board of Electrical Examiners 
is hereby confirmed for the term as noted above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 215-4 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

February 4, 2015 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY PUBLIC RECORDS 
COMMISSION. 

WHEREAS,              pursuant to T.C.A., Section 10-7-401, et seq., certain members of the 
Hamilton County Public Records Commission are appointed by the 
County Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; 
and, 

WHEREAS,              the County Commission member who served on the Records 
Commission, Larry Henry, is now serving as Circuit Court Clerk ; and,  

WHEREAS,              if a vacancy occurs in one (1) of the appointed positions, the County 
Mayor shall appoint a person in the same manner as the original 
appointment; and, 

WHEREAS,            the County Mayor has appointed Chairman Jim Fields, to serve as 
the County Legislative Body member on the Hamilton County 
Public Records Commission; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the appointment of Chairman Jim Fields to the Hamilton County Public Records 
Commission is hereby confirmed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

February 4, 2015 
Date 



No. 215-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A TWO (2) YEAR EXTENDED 
WARRANTY FOR THE SUBMERSIBLE VIDEO RAY AMOUNTING TO $22,939.00 FROM 
VIDEORAY, LLC FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for a two (2) year extended warranty for the Remotely 

Operated Vehicle (ROV), known as a submersible VideoRay amounting to $22,939.00 
for the Sheriff’s Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, this equipment provides additional opportunities for monitoring, enhanced 

surveillance, protection, detection, response and recovery efforts to the Port of 
Chattanooga and other areas of the county where needed; and, 

  
WHEREAS, VideoRay, LLC is the sole source for this extended warranty; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2014 Port Security Grant was accepted by 

Hamilton County and the Capital Budget of the Sheriff’s Department amended on 
Resolution No: 914-16 that will cover the cost of this two (2) year warranty. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from VideoRay, LLC for a two (2) year extended warrant for the Submersible Video 
Ray for the Sheriff’s Department amounting to $22,939.00 is hereby accepted, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 215-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 TITLE 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT WITH THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN 
SERVICES, TO INCREASE THE JUVENILE COURT IV-D BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2014-2015 TO COVER THE ADDITIONAL COST OF LEAVE PAY-OUTS, 
AND TO AMEND THE GENERAL FUND EXPENSE BUDGET BY $88,543 AND THE 
REVENUE BUDGET BY $58,438 FROM PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED FUNDS. 
 
WHEREAS, additional costs have been incurred in the Juvenile Court IV-D program due to 

leave payouts for two (2) Magistrates totaling $88,543; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee Department of Human Services agreed to fund 66% of 

this cost ($58,438) in accordance with the terms of the grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s match will be 34% ($30,105) of the total increase; and 
 
WHEREAS, the expense budget will be amended (increased) by $88,543, and the revenue 

budget increased by $58,438. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract amendment with the State of 
Tennessee Department of Human Services to increase the Juvenile Court IV-D program 
budget by $88,543, and to amend (increase) the General Fund expense budget by 
$88,543, and the revenue budget by $58,438 from previously unbudgeted funds. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 215-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET 
BY ADDING $5,492,612 TO THE FY 2014-2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 
BUDGET; TO AMEND THE SELF-FUNDED PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY ADDING 
$453,859 TO THE FY 2014-2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO 
AMEND THE GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET BY REDUCING THE FY 2014-2015 
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY $2,480,235.  
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education has carryover funds of $5,298,774 

and was awarded additional revenue of $193,838 from various state and federal 
agencies, and desires to use it for the designated purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a self-funded 

budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $159,363 and setting forth 
additional revenue from various non-federal agencies or donations totaling 
$294,496; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a general 

purpose operating budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $906,999 
and a reduction in revenues totaling $3,387,234; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of budget 

amendments setting forth additional revenue and expenses and transfers of 
expenditures from one category to another; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County School Federal Projects Fund be hereby amended by adding $5,492,612 for 
the following items: 
 
 



 
Source of Funds                                                                                                            Amount 
Deferred Revenue                                                                                                $       100,000 
State Revenue                                                                                                                 29,261 
Federal Thru State                                                                                                     5,363,351 
Total                                                                                                                     $   5,492,612 
  
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                                              $    1,837,033 
Special Education Instruction                                                                                       972,458 
Vocational Instruction                                                                                                   (36,659) 
Other Student Support                                                                                                    18,100 
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                       1,835,593 
Special Education Support                                                                                            119,398 
Office of the Principal                                                                                                     (5,000) 
Transportation                                                                                                                 62,102 
Community Services                                                                                                     617,367 
Indirect Costs                                                                                                                  72,220 
Total                                                                                                                     $    5,492,612 
 
 
 
 
 
That the County School Self-funded Projects Fund be hereby amended by adding $453,859 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance                                                               $      159,363 
Charges for Current Services                                                                                       365,000 
Other Local                                                                                                                  (70,504) 
Total                                                                                                                     $      453,859 
 
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                                                $    (135,891) 
Other Student Support                                                                                                    45,888 
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                         174,864 
Maintenance of Plant                                                                                                        3,305 
Community Services                                                                                                     365,000 
Indirect Costs                                                                                                                       693 
Total                                                                                                                      $      453,859 



 

 

 
That the County General Purpose School Fund be hereby amended by reducing $2,480,235 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance                                                               $      154,456 
Restricted for Instruction Fund Balance                                                                        31,370 
Committed for Education Fund Balance                                                                     200,000 
Unassigned Fund Balance                                                                                           521,173 
Local Option Sales Tax                                                                                          (1,142,675) 
Bank Excise Tax                                                                                                         300,000) 
State Education Funds                                                                                               (744,559) 
Basic Education Program                                                                                       (1,200,000) 
Total                                                                                                                   $   (2,480,235) 
 
Use of Funds  
Regular Instruction                                                                                              $ (2,583,242) 
Special Education Instruction                                                                                    (360,196) 
Vocational Education Instruction                                                                              (235,408) 
Attendance                                                                                                                     (3,989) 
Other Student Support                                                                                                 455,023 
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                          93,680 
Special Education Support                                                                                               (769) 
Vocational Education Support                                                                                         (108) 
Board of Education                                                                                                          3,031 
Director of Schools                                                                                                          2,593 
Office of Principal                                                                                                     (240,199) 
Fiscal Services                                                                                                                  (390) 
Human Resources Services                                                                                              4,100 
Operation of Plant                                                                                                        388,346 
Maintenance of Plant                                                                                                     (2,794) 
Central and Other                                                                                                                  81 
Early Childhood Education                                                                                                     6 
Total                                                                                                                      $ (2,480,235) 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 215-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF GIANT STEPS MUSIC CORPORATION FOR BAND 
INSTRUMENTS FOR EAST RIDGE HIGH SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $19,947.00 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for band instruments for East 

Ridge High School for the Commission Office; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Giant Steps Music Corporation amounting to $19,947.00 was the only 

bid received, but said bid is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Giant Steps Music Corporation for band instruments for East Ridge High School 
amounting to $19,947.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the best bid received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 215-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE RENEWAL 
PROPOSAL FOR HAMILTON COUNTY’S UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE 
THROUGH BB&T/HUFFAKER & TRIMBLE WITH ONEBEACON INSURANCE COMPANY 
FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FOR A PREMIUM OF $155,863. 

 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County Government marketed and placed coverage through an RFP process 

in February, 2010 and renewed said coverage annually thereafter; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County Government has solicited a renewal quote from BB&T 
 / Huffaker & Trimble for coverage effective February 12, 2015 for $155,863; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this renewal quote provides the most complete and consistent coverage for the County 

with no premium increase; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  placement of this coverage shall be in the County’s best interest to ensure adequate 

coverage against large unforeseen losses, and more specifically for losses for which the 
County has no sovereign immunity protection; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to accept the renewal proposal for Umbrella Liability 
Insurance coverage from BB&T/Huffaker & Trimble with OneBeacon Insurance Company for a period 
of one year for a premium of $155,863. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 215-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO 
THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR 
A 2015 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$525,000 TO PROVIDE WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County encourages the continuous improvement of public water systems and 

related infrastructure to ensure clean and potable water for its residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS,   electrical upgrades are necessary at the Northwest Utility District’s Water Treatment 

Plant and Raw Water Intake to ensure state-mandated water system capacity; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these improvements include electrical improvements at both the Northwest Utility 

District’s Water Treatment Plant and Raw Water Intake, and  
 
WHEREAS,   Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds are available through the State of 

Tennessee to assist with projects of this nature; and,  
 
WHEREAS,    the Northwest Utility District will provide all required matching funds; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
Hamilton County is hereby authorized to submit a grant application to the Tennessee Department of 
Economic and Community Development for an amount not to exceed $525,000 in Community 
Development Block Grant funds for sewer system improvements within the Northwest Utility District 
water service area.  Should the grant be approved, the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into 
a project administration agreement with the Southeast Tennessee Development District.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 215-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF FORD OF MURFREESBORO FOR ONE (1) 
4X4 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $27,245.00 FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 4X4 utility 

vehicle for Emergency Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Ford of Murfreesboro amounting to $27,245.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Ford of Murfreesboro for one (1) 4X4 utility vehicle amounting to $27,245.00 
for Emergency Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, 
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 215-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF Z-BAND, INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT 
PRICING, BEGINNING FEBRUARY 5, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 4, 2015, FOR VIDEO 
DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit 

pricing for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Z-Band, Inc. was considered to be the lowest and best bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Z-Band, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning February 5, 2015, through 
June 4, 2015, for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 215-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUALIFICATIONS OF AMEC ENVIRONMENT & 
INFRASTRUCTURE, INC., GEO-JOBE GIS CONSULTING, GRW, INC., G-SQUARED, LLC, KCI 
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., KUCERA INTERNATIONAL, INC., LITTLEJOHN ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, 
INC., THE SIDWELL COMPANY, STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC., TETRATECH, INC., TRUE 
NORTH GEOGRAPHIC TECHNOLOGIES, LLC, WISER COMPANY, LLC AND WOOLPERT, INC. FOR 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM DATA ACQUISITION AND CONSULTING SERVICES 
BEGINNING FEBRUARY 4, 2015 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  
 
WHEREAS, Request for Qualifications (RFQ) were received in response to a public advertisement for 

qualifications to facilitate the selection of firms to provide Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) professional services for Orthoimagery, Topographic Data, Planimetric Data, and GIS 
Support Services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the qualifications of AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Inc., GEO-Jobe GIS Consulting, 

GRW, Inc., G-Squared, LLC, KCI Technologies, Inc., Kucera International, Inc., Littlejohn 
Engineering Associates, Inc., The Sidwell Company, Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., 
TetraTech, Inc., True North Geographic Technologies, LLC, Wiser Company, LLC and 
Woolpert, Inc. were evaluated and approved to provide services for four main project types as 
indicated; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there will be sufficient funds budgeted for these services at the time any project is contracted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the qualifications of AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc., GEO-Jobe GIS Consulting., GRW, Inc., 
G-Squared, LLC, KCI Technologies, Inc., Kucera International, Inc., Littlejohn Engineering Associaes, Inc., The 
Sidwell Company, Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., TetraTech, Inc., True North Geographic Technologies, 
LLC, Wiser Company, LLC,  and Woolpert, Inc. for Geographic Information System Data Acquisition and 
Consulting Services beginning February 4, 2015, through December 31, 2018, are hereby approved, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 215-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PROSYS FOR DELL SERVERS AND DELL 
POWER VAULT SYSTEM COMPONENTS AMOUNTING TO $118,106.56 FOR THE 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for Dell Servers and 

Dell Power Vault system components for the Information Technology 
Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from ProSys amounting to $118,106.56 was considered to be the 

lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projets funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of ProSys for Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault system components amounting 
to $118,106.56 for the Information Technology Services Department is hereby accepted, said 
bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 







































No. 215-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DELL MARKETING, LP FOR CONTRACT UNIT 
PRICING, BEGINNING FEBRUARY 4, 2015, THROUGH FEBRUARY 3, 2016 FOR MICROSOFT 
OFFICE STANDARD 2013 AND MICROSOFT OFFICE PRO PLUS 2013 LICENSES FOR THE 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a one (1) year unit price 

contract, with the option to renew for one (1) additional year, for Microsoft Office 
Standard 2013 and Microsoft Office Pro Plus 2013 licenses for the Information 
Technology Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Dell Marketing, LP amounting to $232.94 for Microsoft Office 

Standard 2013 and $317.21 for Microsoft Office Pro Plus 2013 was considered to be 
the lowest and best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Dell Marketing, LP for contract unit pricing, beginning February 4, 2015, through 
February 3, 2016, for Microsoft Office Standard 2013 and Microsoft Office Pro Plus 2013 licenses for 
the Information Technology Services Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best 
bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 




























	2-4-15 Public Agenda 
	215-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - January 14, 2015 _1335_01-14-15 Recessed
	215-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - January 14, 2015 _1337_01-14-15 Agenda
	215-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - January 21, 2015 _1332_01-21-15 Regular
	215-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report December 2014_1315_December 2014 Excess Fee Report
	215-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report December 2014_1316_December 2014 Trustee Monthly Report
	215-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1330_02-04-15
	215-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1330_02-04-15A
	215-2_R_County Mayor_Reappointment of Steve Parks as chairman of the Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board._1324_Reappointment Chair Haml Co Emp Appeals Brd
	215_2_S_Steve Parks Bio
	215-3_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Brian Keith Owensby to the Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners._1325_Reappointment One Member Haml Co Brd of Elec Exam
	215_3_S_Brian Keith Owensby Bio
	215-4_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Chairman Jim Fields to the Hamilton County Public Records Commission._1344_Appointment of Chairman Fields - Public Records Commission
	215-5_R_Sheriff Hammond_Extended two  year warranty for the Submersible Video Ray_1326_RES. SUBMERSIBLE VIDEO RAY EXTENDED WARRANTY
	215-5_S_Sheriff Hammond_Extended two  year warranty for the Submersible Video Ray_1326_Submersible Video Ray Extended Warranty
	215-6_R_Sam Mairs_Amendment to Juvenile Court Child Support Grant_1319_Amendment to Juvenile Court Child Support Grant
	215-7_R_Christie Jordan_FY 2015 Board of Education Budget Amendments._1317_DOE Amendments
	215-7_S_Christie Jordan_FY 2015 Board of Education Budget Amendments._1317_0528_001
	215-9_R_Commissioner Boyd_Band Instruments for East Ridge High School_1327_RES. BAND INSTRUMENTS FOR EAST RIDGE HIGH SCHOOL
	215-9_S_Commissioner Boyd_Band Instruments for East Ridge High School_1327_Band Instruments for East Ridge High School
	215-10_R_Alecia Poe_Umbrella Liability Insurance Renewal_1323_RES. UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE RENEWAL
	215-11_R_Dan Saieed_2015 CDBG  Application Resolution_1329_Resolution CDBG Northside Utility District a 2015
	215-12_R_Don Allen_One Utility Vehicle_1338_RES. (1) 4X4 UTILITY VEHICLE
	215-12_S_Don Allen_One Utility Vehicle_1338_(1) 4X4 Utility Vehicle
	215-13_R_Bill McGriff_Video Distribution Equipment_1343_RES. Z-BAND VIDEO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT
	215-13_S_Bill McGriff_Video Distribution Equipment_1343_Video Distribution Equipment
	215-14_R_Albert Kiser_Geographic Information Data Acquisition and Consulting Services._1318_RES. GIS DATA ACQUISITION & CONSULTING SERVICES
	215-14_S_Albert Kiser_Geographic Information Data Acquisition and Consulting Services._1318_RFQ-GIS Acquisition & Consulting Services
	215-15_R_Albert Kiser_Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault System Components_1328_RES. DELL SERVERS & POWER VAULT SYSTEM COMPONENTS
	215-15_S_Albert Kiser_Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault System Components_1328_Dell Servers & Dell Power Vault
	215-16_R_Albert Kiser_Contract for Microsoft Software_1331_RES. MICROSOFT SOFTWARE CONTRACT
	215-16_S_Albert Kiser_Contract for Microsoft Software_1331_MICROSOFT SOFTWARE CONTRACT

